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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO
THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL JUTE MANUFACTURES CORPORATION LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of NATIONAL JUTE MANUFACTURES
CORPORATION LIMITED (“The Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, th~ Statement
of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of matters described in the Basis for Qualified opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone
Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

A) Going Concern Assumption:
Theaccounts have beendrawnupon going concern basis which is not appropriate under the circumstances
because of the following reasons: : )

a) The Union Cabinet has approved the closure of National Jute Manufactures Corporation Limited
(NJMC) and its subsidiary Birds Jute Exports Limited (BJEL) at its meeting held on 10th October, 2018.
Disposal of all assets will be in accordance with the guidelines of DPE dated 14.06.2018 and the
proceeds from the sale of assets, after meeting the liabilities will be deposited in Consolidated Eund of
India. In terms of engagement of MSTC as auctioning agency, all the movable assets of five of its mills
namely viz National, Alexandra, RBHM, Kinnison, and Khardah have been disposed off along with
building of Khardah.

b} Duringtheyearthe company hasrecognized the disposal of its movable property, plant, and equipment
of Khardah and Kinnison Unit and Building of Khardah. The profit of which is shown as ....ome from
Scrap Sale (refer note 18(B)(ii) of Standalone Financial Statements).

¢) NBCC who has been appointed as Pre-Land Management Agency submitted its report but the disposal
of Land & Building for all units is yet to be taken.

d) During the year the disposal of movable property, plant, and equipment along with building which
were auctioned and sold along with inventory, the sales value over and above carrying value of such
movable Property, Plant and Equipment is shown as Income from Scrap sale.

e) Theincome of the Company for the last several years is primarily from Interest on Fixed Deposits.

f) The Financial Statements indicate that the company’s current and non-curre
total assets by ¥13,530.64 Lakhs and its net worth is fully eroded.
These factors confirm the inability of the company to continue as a going cc{z gria
liabilities in the normal course of business at present.



Salarpuria & Partners

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
7, C. R. AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072

INDIA Phone : 2237 5400 / 5401, 4014 5400-5410

Website : www.salarpuriajajodia.com
E-mail ; salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com
office@salarpuriajajodia.com
Branch at New Deihi

B) Non-Compliance with Accounting Standards:
B.1 Accounting Standard-2 — Valuation of Inventories

Duringthe year company has disposed off its remaining inventories which was carrying since a long period,
bookvalue of which was ¥ 322.55 lakhs. Without the details of the inventories, valuation as per Accounting
Standard 2 cannot be ascertained. Such book value of inventory of ¥ 322.55 lakhs as on 01.4.2023 was
transferred to scrap sale with value of realization is nil as it is sold at a lumpsum auction with movable
Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company.

B.2 Accounting Standard -9 ~ Revenue Recognition:

The company has recognized interest income of ¥184.88 Lakhs on the loans granted to its subsidiary, Birds
Jute & Exports Ltd. But at the same time, it has also made provision on this account towards doubtful
interest receivable net of TDS. This process of accounting is causing loss to the company on account of
income tax on the interest income being irrecoverable for years. The subsidiary company has not made
any repayments of principal as well as interest for several years.

B.3 Accounting Standard 10 — Property Plant & Equipment
The profit on disposal of Property Plant & Equipment on account of sale is shown as income from scrap
sale.

B.3 Accounting Standard -22- Accounting for Taxes on Income:

The Company has not complied with AS-22 Accounting for Taxes on Income. Ascertainment of Deferred
Tax Asset & Liability in accordance with the said standard has not been done.

The company has provided income tax provision for F.Y. 23-24 on the basis of estimation and final liability
would be determined later at the time of final payment of income tax. If any shortfall/excess, the same
will be then recognized subsequently.

B. 4 Accounting Standard — 29 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is in litigation with various parties
on diverse matters, a number of which are pending for several years. However, against many cases, the
company has not estimated and disclosed the amount of possible financial implication of the dispute, as
required under AS 29 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.

B.4 Accounting Standard — 24 - "Discontinuing Operations’:

As the company has already started disposing off its movable assets including inventories according to the
closure directives, the company cannot be treated to be continuing in operation. The ¢Isclosure as
contained in accounting standard 24 ‘Discontinuing Operations’ have not been followed in preparation of
the accounts of the company.
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ties:

B
C) Under/Over statement of Income/Expenses and Assets/Liabili
C.1 Property, Plant & Equipment & Depreciation:

a) As disclosed in Note 9(4), 'Land & Building’, of the Standalone Financial Statements, includes
property at 5, Alipore 'Road, Kolkata, which is not in the possession of the Company though
vested in the company under the Jute Companies (Nationalization) Act, 1980. The property is
under litigation and the legal experts are having divergent views regarding the ownership right over
the property. Though the ownership is disputed, the company is providing liability in respect of
municipal taxes payable to Kolkata Municipal Corporation, which amounted to Rs.4.45akhs for
the financial year 2023-24 (Previous Year: Rs.4.45 Lakhs). The cumulative Liability so provided up
to 21.03.2024 is 3120.92 Lakhs (upto 31.03.2023: ¥116.47 Lakhs). Refer Note No. 7(b) of the
Standalone Financial Statement

¢) The Title Deeds of the land at various location were made available for our verification but
could not be properly verified and linked with the records of land (refer note 9(8) of
Standalone Financial Statements). However, according to information and explanation given to
us, the land property of three mills viz. Khardah, some portion of Kinnison and Alexandra are
still continuing in the name of the erstwhile companies. We have been further informed that
representation has been made to the Additional District Magistrate & District Land &Land
Reforms Officer — North 24 Paraganas, Barasat as well as Secretary Land and Land Reforms and
Refugee Relief and Rehabilitation Department, Government of West Bengal for updating the
land records in respect of the said properties but, the matter is still pending as on 31% March
2024

C.2 Investments:

The company is not maintaining proper Register of its Investments. The details of investments, as
disclosed under note no. 10 of the Standalone Financial Statements, is also not matching with-the general
ledger and there is a difference of Rs.0.37 Lakh. Further, in respect Investments in Govt. securities
aggregating to 0.74 Lakhs and Share scrips in respect of investments held in Britannia Engineering Ltd.
and J.F. Low & Co. Ltd, value ‘NI’ could not be made available for our verification and were informed to
be not traceable. These investments are very old and it was explained to us that the original certificates
might have been provided as security to the various Govt. authorities/departments. It was also noticed
that investments include ¥ 0.02 Lakhs in the shares of companies, the names of which have already been
struck off. However, full provision has been made against all these investments. Furthermore,
investments include shares in Cheviot Company Limited and Birla Corporation Limited against which full
provision has been made though dividend of Rs.0.02 Lakhs have been received against these shares.

C. 3 Cash and Bank Balances:

Bank balances include Rs 0.90 lakhs on account of Kinnison Unit lying with UCO Bank, Titagarh Branch,
which is an inoperative account as on balance sheet date.

Bank balance include Rs. 5.91 lakhs on account of RBHM unit lying with Centt N ank, Katihar

district branch, for which details are not available with the management.
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C. 4 Short Term Loans & Advances:

a) Against the aggregate amount of R$.1319.71 Lakhs as income tax deducted at source receivable by
the company has made a provision of Rs.408.77 Lakhs.{refer note no. 15(b) of standalone financial
statements)

b) The Income-tax refunds determined for earlier years, together with interest allowed thereon, are
being adjusted by the Income tax department against the arrear demand for the assessment year
1990-91. The outstanding demand summary of the company appearing in the Intimation U/s. 143(1)
for the assessment year 2023-24 is still showing a sum of Rs.176.16Lakhs (For the .../. 1990-91)
payable by the company. The demand for 2007-08, 2009-10 and 2023-24, amounting to Rs.1.78 Lakhs
was paid by the company on 28/12/23.

c) After going through the balance confirmation and the audited financial statements for the year ending
31.03.2024received from Birds Jute & Exports Ltd., the subsidiary, we observed the balance
lying in various accounts with the subsidiary are not matching, the details of which are as follows:

Account Balance as per Balance as per Remarks
NJMC (X in Lakhs) Subsidiary
(X in Lakhs)

Loan Given 477.49 477.49 Differences enumerated in the
Interest Accrued on loans 4213.64 4213.64 columns have iiot  been
granted to Subsidiary reconciled till close of the year.
Advances given 632.15 631.05
Creditors for Goods NiL 94.91
Creditors for Rent NIL 0.15
Trade Receivables A/c Goods NIL 258.21
Trade Receivables A/c NIL 7.40
Expenses

C. 5 Other Current Assets:

In absence of party wise details and relevant documents in respect of Security Deposits aggregating to
54.70 Lakhs, out of which * 11.47 Lakhs considered doubtful, it could not be determined how *-.e company
is assured of the recovery of balance amount of Rs.43.23 Lakhs which also should have been provided
under the current situation. Refer Note No. 16(b) of the Standalone Financial Statement.

C. 6 Long Term Borrowings:

a) The company has taken loans of ¥ 281.48 Lakhs from Government of West Bengal in earlier years. The
Loan agreement or any other document showing the terms and conditions of such loan could not be
made available to us for our verification. The company has defaulted in repayment of loan taken from
Government of West Bengal Rs 1932.93 lakhs (principal and interest thereon) as on 31.03.2024. (refer
note no. 4 of Standalone Financial Statements)

b) No balance confirmation have been obtained by the company from the Central Gove
outstanding balance of interest free loan as on 31.03.2024 amounting to Rs,215
defaulted (refer note no. 4 of Standalone Financial Statements).
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C. 7 Trade Payables:

Trade Payables aggregating to 2036.76 Lakhs (as at 31.03.2023 %2104.85 Lakhs) include old
outstanding balances carried over for more than three years aggregating to ¥ 1983.50 Lakhs as per age-
wise analysis of trade payables prepared by the company Trade payable MSME was Rs 112.58 lakhs as
on 31.03.24. Details of such was not made available to us which remain outstanding for more than
three years. So, we are not able to comment on the classification and provision for interest of delayed
payment to MSME. Furthermore, in case of Kinnison Unit, the number of Sundry Creditors for Services
and Sundry Creditors for Stores are being included in Trade Payables at net of debit balance of Rs.
25.32 Lakhs lying in some of these creditor accounts.'Consequently, the liability on account of Trade
Payables is understated to that extent in the balance sheet. Furthermore, the provision made by the
company towards doubtful advances given is also short to that extent, which has the impact of
understatement of loss to the extent of Rs.25.32 Lakhs on this account.

C.8 Other Current Liabilities:

a)

Statutory dues also include Damages due on PF and interest thereon amounting to Rs.903.06
Lakhs, Damages on ESI and interest thereon amounting to Rs. 3240.01 Lakhs, Professional Tax
(including interest) amounting to Rs. 70.18 Lakhs, and Fringe Benefit Tax amounting to ¥ 8.93
Lakhs, Provision for TDS Statutory amounting to Rs. 2.74 Lakhs which are brought forward since
long back for which no relevant information is provided by the company so, due to absence of
relevant information, it could not be ascertained how much of these liabilities are ultimately
payable or whether the same have been adequately provided.

In the absence of party-wise details and other necessary information in respect of undisbursed
claim of Commissioner of Payment: ¥ 40.29 Lakhs; Performance Guarantee: ¥ 57.47 Lakhs,
Advance from Parties: ¥103.55 Lakhs, interest on ISDS Fund of Rs.19.02 Lakhs and ola outstanding
balances included in Security Deposits/EMD Received amount of which could not be ascertained
for want of details. It is not possible for us to ascertain how much of these liabilities are uitimately
payable or whether the same have been ultimately provided for. Most of the balance are
outstanding from a long period of time.

Liabilities for Employee benefits of ¥337.83 Lakhs include old outstanding liability aggregating to
%320.60 Lakhs on account of VRS payable, Gratuity Payable and Arrear Salary Payable. The
company is maintaining the old balances as liability towards staff related payments. According to
the information given to us, the total financial contingent liability in Labour matters, so far, the
management could ascertain in a number of cases comes to ¥6987.99 Lakhs. Refer Note No 25 of
the Standalone Financial Statements.

Unpaid Other Rates ¥ 113.78 Lakhs, are being carried forward for long. In the absence of relevant
information, it could not be ascertained how much of these liabilities are ultimately payable or
whether the same have been adequately provided. Refer Note No 7 of the Standalone Financial
Statements.

In view of the aforesaid observations, we are unable to determine the impact of these matters on
the statement of affairs of the company and the corresponding impact on the-Statement of Profit

& Loss.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is
an unlisted company.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to re: ] the other
informationand, indoingso, considerwhetherthe other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard at present.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Theresponsibilityalso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent, design & implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to nquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. ~

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. ;
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AUDITOR’S RESPONBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain >rofessional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of account..ig estimates -
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events of conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
amaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Com pany to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
andtimingofthe audit and significant and findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,.r& afeguards.
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Other Matters

The Financial Statements of the company for the year ended 31* March 2023 has been audited by R.K.Patodia

& Co,,

Chartered Accountants, the predecessor auditor who expressed an modified opinion vide their report

dated December 1, 2023.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of matters stated in Other Matter Paragraph.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. Asrequiredbythe Companies (Auditor'sReport) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure-A, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

We have sought and, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination of the books.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account.

Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our
opinion, the Standalone Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement comply
with the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

We have been informed that the provisions of section 164(2) of the Act in respect of disqualification
of directors are not applicable to the Company, being a Government Company in terms of notification
No.G.S.R.463(E) dated 5th June, 2015.

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B.

\‘13/
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(i) Since the company is not paying any managerial remuneration to the directors, the provision of
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

)

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

iil.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements(refer note no 25 of Standalone Financial Statements)

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which required to be transferred of the Investor Education Protection
Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced ore loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”)
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lendor invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide-any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

{(whichare material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
fromany person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whetherrecordedinwriting orotherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, secuiizy or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; )

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances,nothinghascometoournoticethathascausedustobelievethatthe representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

As the company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the provisions contained
in section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to it.
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3. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143 (5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books
and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, in the “Annexure-C” on the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India '

4. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining hooks of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility is applicable to the
company with effect from Aprill, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

As per the above mentioned rule the company has to maintain books of accounts in a software which has the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) but the same is not complied by the company during the financial
year 2023-24.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. ICAl 302113F

Nihar Ranjan |

UDIN: 240 57076BK (DHEAIS
Place: zotLkATA
Date: @43, 0a.2024
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Annexure —- A Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of National Jute Manufactures
Corporation Limited (the company) on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,

2024,

We report that:

i}(a) (A) The Company is not maintaining proper records of the Property, Plant & Equipment. The records kept

by the company in respect of Property, Plant & Equipment lack sufficient information, in many cases,
like description of asset to make identification possible, its location/situation, year of purchase,
adjustments made on account of revaluation or impairment, if any, its useful life and, in case of land
of some of the units of the company, the plot-wise details of the same and specification whether free
hold, lease hold or perpetual lease. Furthermore, the company has not updated these records for last
several years. We have been informed that the company is in the process of closure and has already
disposed-off entire movable assets of all of its units except land and building Such sale has been
accounted for over and above the valuation made for the list of movable assets provided by NBCC (1)
Ltd., which was appointed for the purposes of verification, assessment and valuation of assets before
undertaking disposal in accordance with the DPE guidelines, with due approval of the Board of
Directors. :

(B) There is no intangible asset in the books of the company. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(i)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information given to us, the management could not carry out any physical verifica-
tion of Property, Plant & Equipment during the year under review. It was further informed that due
to shortage of staff, the management could not carry out any physical verification of Property, Plant
& Equipment during the year under review .In the absence of any physical verification we are unable
to comment whether there exists any material discrepancy.

We have been further informed that verification of the assets (Property, Plant, Equipment and Land)
was conducted through an external agency i.e. NBCC (India) Ltd., a Central Government PSU as part
of Pre-LMA activities, and the Board of Directors has accepted the list of movable assets as per the
report of NBCC(India) Ltd. without ascertaining any discrepancy, if any.

(c) Though a number of title deeds in respect of various plots of land were produced before us by the
management for our verification, the same could not be properly linked with the records kept by
the company in respect of its immovable properties held at different locations of the country for
want of adequate details in the records of Property, Plant and Equipment. We have be_n informed
by the management that on the basis of verification of Records of Rights conducted by them from
various sources, the title of the following immovable properties of the company are not in its name.
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The details of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company

Relevant line | Description | Gross Title  over | Whether Property held | Reason for not
item in the | of Item of | Carrying property in | title deed | since date being held in
Balance Property Value ( T in | the Records | holder is a the name of
Sheet lakhs) of  Rights | promoter the company.
appearing in | director or
the name of | relative of
promoter/
director or
employee
of promo-
ter/director.
Land- Unit | Included in ¥ | Alexandra N. A, 21%"December | Though all the
Alexandra 1.34 Jute  Mills 1980 mentioned
mentioned in | Ltd properties
FAR not were  vested
separately on NJMC Ltd.
ascertainable , as »er the Jute
Land- Unit | 4.86 Mackinon N. A 21%December | Company
Alexandra Mackenzie 1980 Nationalisation
& Co Pvt Act, the
Ltd. * _ transfer of the
Land-Unit 20.03 Mavyarani N. A 10th June | same in the
National Devi 1980 name of NJMC
Land-Unit included in ¥ | National N. A. 10th June | is still pending.
National 2.40 . mentio | Jute Co. Ltd. 1980 In case of Land
ned in FAR and Building at
not ascertain Alipore Road,
able the ownership
separately is ynder litiga-
Property | Land-Unit | Included in % | The N. A. 21stDecember | tion. In respect
Plant & Kinnison 79.11/- Kinnison 1980 of land at
Equipment mentioned in | Jute Mills Co Kalimpong,
FAR not | Ltd. which was
Land — Unit | separa-tely The Cable N. A. 21stDecember | Stated to be
Kinnison ascertainable | Chut Com- 1980 lease hold, the
pany Ltd. copy of lease
Land - Unit | ¥5.15/- Khardah N.A. 21stDecember | @greement
Khardah Com-pany 1980 was not avail-
Ltd. able with the
Land-Unit | ¥ 27.00/- The British N.A. .21stDecember | COMpany.
RBHM India 1980 !
Corpora-
tion(Lease) ;
Building 3 2.00/- Mackinon N.A. 21stDecemb
Alipore Road Mackenzie & 1980
Co. Pvt. Lid.
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As informed and explained to us, the management of six sick Private sector Jute manufacturing
companies were taken over by the Central Government under Clause (a) of sub-section (1) of
Section 18AA of the Industries (Development and Regulation) Act, 1956 and thereafter the
ownership of all the properties and other Assets of these companies were vested in the Central
Government through enabling legislations. The National Jute Mill was nationalized under the
National Company Limited (Acquisition and transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 and the remaining
five companies were nationalized under the Jute Companies (Nationalization) Act, 1980. The
ownership of these nationalized companies was vested on NJMC Ltd, a company newly created
specifically for this purpose on 3June 1980 (National Jute Mill w.e.f. 10th June, 1980 and the
remaining five mills w.e.f. 21* December, 1980). It was informed to us the title deeds in respect of
some of the land belonging to these units, having approximate total area of 20 acres, though
appearing in the Records of Rights, are not available with the company.

(d)The company has not revalued its property, plant & equipment (including right of use assets) during
the year under reference.

(e) Asinformed and explained to us by the company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the company for holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, all the inventories were auctioned out
along with Property, Plant and Equipment during the financial year, hence the closing inventory as
on 31.03.2024 is nil. No physical verification has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management so we are not able to comment on the discre‘pancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, during any point of time of the year, the
Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made investments in or
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not provided loans or
provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity
during the year.

(A) Though no loans or advances in the nature of loan were granted during the year, the company
has granted unsecured loan and advances to its subsidiary in earlier years. The Balance of such
loans and advances, including interest aggregating to ¥5323.28 Lakhs accrued thereon till
31.03.2024.

(B) In earlier years the company has granted non interest bearing ) 5

Handlooms Exports Corporation of India Limited(HHEC) which i S
The balance of the said loan in the Balance Sheet as on 31.03.24 is|
Lakhs as on 31.03.23).
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(b) The terms and conditions on which the loans and advances were granted to the subsidiary company

(c)

(d)

in the earlier years could not be made available to us and, therefore, we are unable to comment
whether same were prejudicial to the interest of the company. As regards the interest free loan
granted in an earlier year to HHEC, which is a central public sector unit, we have been explained by
the management that the same was granted as per the decision of the Ministry of Textiles,

Governmentof India and, hence, should not be treated as prejudicial to the interest of the company.

The terms and conditions on which the loans and advances were granted to the subsidiary company
in the earlier years could not be made available to us and, hence, we are unable to comment
whether there are any express stipulations as regards due dates for payment of interest and
repayment of the principal amount. The Union Cabinet has approved the closure of the said
subsidiary company and consequently the said loan is beihg considered doubtful but the company
is charging interest on the loan given to its subsidiary at the agreed rates and also made full
provisions for the same, net of TDS thereon, since the amount s being considered Jdoubtful of
recovery. As regards the interest free loan granted in an earlier year to the aforesaid another Public
Sector Unit HHEC, the said loan was repayable by the party within a maximum period of two years
from the date of disbursement of the loans from the sale proceeds of its assets. The said party, vide
its email dated 28.01.2021, has requested the company to extend the time stipulated for repayment
by a further period of two years or until further direction of MOT, as the party is in advanced stage
of the process of closure. As per the minutes of the Board meeting in its 185" Board Meeting, it has
been decided that a letter may be initiated to the Ministry of Textiles stating the facts regarding the
requested extension of the time period for loan repayment and to get the necessary advice.

In the absence of any document produced before us specifying the terms and conditions on which
the loans and advances were granted to the subsidiary company in the earlier years, we are unable
to specify the amount overdue for more than 90 days included in the closing balance of 35323.28
Lakhs as at the Balance Sheet date, which includes interest aggregating to I4213.64 Lakhs accrued
thereon till that date. We have been informed that the Central Government has declared closure of
the subsidiary company and the recovery, if any, will be made out of funds to be generated by the
subsidiary through disposal of its assets. As regards the non-interest bearing loan granted to
another central Public Sector Unit HHEC, the balance of T 1,078.21 Lakhs is overdue for more than
90 days on the basis of originally stipulated terms & conditions. As aforesaid, the said party, vide
its email dated 28.01.2021, has requested the company to extend the time stipulated for repayment
by a further period of two years or until further direction of MOT, as this party is in advanced stage
of the process of closure. As per the minutes of the Board meeting in its 189" Board Meeting, it has
been decided by the management that a letter may be initiated to the Ministry of Textiles stating
Facts regarding the requested extension of the time period for loan repayment and to get the
necessary advice.

The company has not renewed or extended or granted fresh loans during the year to settle the over
dues of existing loans given to the same parties. The amount of the aforesaid loan awaiting decision
of its renewal is ¥ 1,078.21 Lakhs.
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(f} The company, during the year, has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan, which is
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. As regards the
loans or advances in the nature of loans granted in earlier years to the subsidiary, the terms and
conditions on which the same were granted could not be made available to us and, hence we are
unable to comment whether the same were repayable on demand on without specifying any terms
or period of repayment. Loan given to HHEC is Rs.1078.21 Lakhs and BJEI (Subsidiary) is Rs.477.49
Lakhs, so the percentage thereofis 225.81%.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company during the
year has not granted any loan, made investment, provided any guarantee or security, which attracts the
provisions-of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

v) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits under
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder. No order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any court of any other tribunal.

vi) During the year under review, the company was not engaged in any such activities which attracts the
maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the Act.

viif{a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is generany regular in
depositing its current undisputed statutory dues with the appropriate authorities except in case of
legal charges where the GST liability under RCM basis was paid on 31% December 2023 for 3 period
of 9 months (April 23- December 23). Moreover the company was irregular in paying its advance
income tax on quarterly basis as they paid more than 90% advance tax on 15" March 2024 (Last
Quarter) due to which they also had to incur interest on delayed payment u/s 234C.

However, there are many old outstanding statutory dues lying unpaid since long for which no proper defaults
and other explanations for non-payment could be made available to us, the breakup of which as follows:-

a) Damages for Provident Fund (including interest) : ¥903.06 Lakhs

b) Damages for Employees State Insurance (Including Interest): ¥3240.01 Lakhs

¢) Profession Tax (including Interest): ¥70.18 Lakhs
d) Fringe Benefit Tax :¥8.93 Lakhs
e) TDS Statutory :32.74 Lakhs

f) Other Rates &Taxes :¥113.78 Lakhs

Further in absence of any supporting documents for proper explanation we could n¢
exists any dispute for non-payment of the aforesaid statutory dues.

certain wiiether there
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vii) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the following statutory dues have not been
deposited as on 31* March, 2024 on account of dispute (Refer Note No. 25 (8)): :

Nature of the
Statute

Nature of
Dues

Forum where
dispute is
pending

Amount
Due 4
in Lakhs)

Period to which.

dues relate

Remarks

Finance Act

Service Tax

Deputy

0.10

Very Old

1994 Commissioner,

Service Tax

676.17 Demands of
Interest
appearing on
the Income-
tax Portal in
respect of
Assessment
Years 1990-
91,2007-08
ai.. 2009-10,
which
according to
the company
is not
appropriate

Income Tax Act Income Tax NA

1961

Relating to
1990-91 (As per
Portal)

1.59 Demands
raised on
account of

TDS defaults

and interest

Income Tax Act Tax ~ NA
1961 deducted at
Source

Very Old
(As per Portal)

* viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no undisclosed income ddf‘i’ng the year
disclosed in Tax assessments under Income Tax, 1961;

ix){a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed
by us, the Company has defaulted in repayment of loan taken from Government of West Bengal
amounting to X 1932.93 Lakhs (including interest thereon ¥ 1651.45 Lakhs) as on 31.03.2024 and in
defaulted in repayment of interest free loan taken from Government of India amounting to¥ 21571.41
Lakhs. The Company has made request for adjustment of principal amount of Government of West
Bengal loan against the compensation receivable by the company towards acquisition of land and
conversion of 3922 Lakhs out of interest payable into a soft loan as disclosed i
to Note 4(d) of Standalone Fmancnal Statements. However no documents i
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Nature of Name of | Amountnot | Whether | No. of d&farich at New Defainarks
Borrowing, lender paid on due | principal | of delay or
including date or unpaid
debt interest
securities
Unsecured Govt. Of 3281.48 Principal | Since 1994 | According to information given to
Loan West Bengal Lakhs us the company has requested to
DO 3165145 | Interest | 1994and | adjust principal amount against
Lkhs subsequent | compensation  receivable on
years acquisition of land and to convert
I 922 lakhs out of the total
interest payable into soft loan.
No consent has vyet been
received.
Unsecured Govt. Of R21571.41 | Principal Not
Loan India Lakhs Available

(b) The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or other
lender;

(c) The Company has obtained loans from both Government of West Bengal and Government of India in
earlier years. However, the terms and conditions subject to which the company has obtained the
loans including purpose for which such loans were sanctioned were not made available to us.
Therefore, we are unable to comment whether the loans were applied for the purpose for which
those were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not raised any funds on short term basis and accordingly
reporting requirements under paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

(e)The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person during the year on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as explained and informed to us by
the management.

{f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or privateplacement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. RO
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. . L Bragoh t New Delhi . .
xi) (@) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of such case by the management.

(b) No report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed i. Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were received by the
company during the year .

xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the
Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xiii} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections .77 and 188
of the Act, where applicable, and details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by Accounting Standard {AS) 18.

xiv) (a) As per section 138 of The Companies Act, 2013, no internal audit has been conducted for the financial
year 2023-24. :

(b) As no internal audit was conducted during FY 2023-24, consideration of such report does not arise.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them during the year and hence, the
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

xvi) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not engaged in any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing finance activities. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the
reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. v

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no Core Investment Company asa
part of the group. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order-is not applicable to
the Company : N
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xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanatRrnglveh Newidali Company has not
incurred cash losses in the current financial year as well as in the immediately preceding financial year.

Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the company during the year Accordingly, the
reporting under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. '

xix} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans, and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, has ¢>me to our

- notice that causes us to believe that material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts upto the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet, will be met by
the company as and when they fall due.

xx) Since the company has neither formed any fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act 2013 nor
spend any amount under section 135 of the said Act, this point does not apply to the company.

xxi) As our report is not on consolidated financial statements, the reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company :

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. ICAI 302113F

AR P 1 P L
Winar Renjan Nayas

O/ h
UDIN: 2uB 575368k DHLAIUé
Place: xoLikpTh
Date : 07, .09.201Y4
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Annexure — B

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NATIONAL JUTE MANUFACTURES
CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Company”) as on 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI’). These responsibilities.
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respect.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor a judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error;.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained in most of the cases, excepting old cases, are sufﬂcnent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial cox
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

externals purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, L.cluding the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
overfinancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the company and its units
being remained inoperative for several years, various information and papers in support could not be made
available hence we cannot comment on its internal financial control over financial reporting on criteria based
on or considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI, e.g. control environment, risk assessmant, control
activities, information system and communication and monitoring. The Board’s report also does not
include any risk management policy for the company including identification therein of elements of risk.

In view of above observations, Internal Financial Controls in the Company as on 31.03.2024 is inadequate
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria as stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

We have considered the qualified opinion reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent of
audit tests applied in our opinion on the financial statements of the company.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. ICAl 302113E

N R e
UDIN: 34D 57076 BKGDH KA16
Place: tpihTA
Date : 03.09. 2024
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Annexure - C
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 3 under “Other legal and regulatory requirements “of our report of even date)

1. In response to the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(5)
of the Act, we report that:

(i)

(ii)

{iii) (a)

~

The company does not have an ERP Accounting System or fully integrated IT system among its units
and corporate office. The accounts of each unit and corporate office are maintained on accounting
software. Consolidation of accounts of the corporate office and the varlous divisions are done
through a separate data entry mode.

The present system adopted by the company leaves a scope of absence of data integrity and
increases audit risk.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there have been no cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by
a lender to the company due to company’s inability to repay the loan.

The Company is carrying Interest Free loan, sanctioned by the Government of India as additional
budgetary support for restructuring/revival of the Company as approved by Cabinet Committee of
Economic Affairs (CCEA) and BIFR, as Long Term Borrowings.

The Company has obtained a Loan of ¥ 281.48 Lakhs from Government of West Bengal in earlier
years, repayment of Loan and interest on which have been defaulted in since 31% March 1994. The
accumulated balance of Loan and Unpaid Interest is ¥1932.93 Lakhs as on 31.03.2024. In absence
of loan documents, terms & conditions, adequacy of the interest provision made cannot be
commented upon.

(c) As disclosed in Note 3 of the Standalone Financial Statements, the Company had received grants

from Bihar Governmentand JIRA in 1988-89 and subsidy from West Bengal Industrial Development
Corporation in1982-83. The detailed papers of such grant/subsidy as well as the assets acquired
out of such grant were not made available to us. As per the discussion with the management we
were made aware that the grant was given for the daily expense of the unit. Each year an amount
of Rs.0.10 lakhs is transferred from the grant and is shown as income as on 31/03/24 after
transferring the amount of ¥ 0.10 lakhs for this F.Y. an amount of T 0.08 lakhs is left in it

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. ICAI 302113E
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* The auditors of subsidiary company have also stated that the balances in Trade Receivables,

Creditors,~Suppliers and Advances are subject toconfirmation/reconciliation and “subsequent
adjustments, if any.

* During the year the subsidiary company has ngt accounted for electricity charges recoverable from
tenants amounting to ¥ 25.08 lakhs, though notice have been given to tenants for evicting the
premises but still electricity being consumed by tenants are recoverable as facilities have been
provided to them.

* The Financial Statements indicate that the group’s current and non-current liabilities exceed its total
assets by ¥23,583.91 Lakhs and its net worth is fully eroded. The manufacturing units of the group are
also not in operation for the last several years.

These factors confirm the inability of the group to continue as a going concern and to discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business at present.

B) Non Compliance with Accounting Standards:

- B.1 Accounting Standard-2 ~ Valuation of Inventories

During the year company has disposed off its remaining inventories which was carrying since a long period,
book value of which was Rs 322.55 lakhs. Without the details of the inventories, valuatica:as per
Accounting Standard 2 cannot be ascertained. Such book value of inventory of Rs 322.55 lakhs as on
01.4.2023 was transferred to scrap sale with value of realization is nil as it is sold at a lumpsum auction with
movable Property, Plant and Equipment of the Holding Company.

B. 2 Accounting Standard -10- Property, Plant and Equipment

The profit on disposal of Property Plant & Equipment of Holding Company on account of sale is shown
as Profit on sale of scrap sale.

B.3 Accodnting Standard -22- Accounting for Taxes on Income:

The Holding Company has not complied with AS-22 Accounting for Taxes on income. Ascertainment of
Deferred Tax Asset & Liability in accordance with the said standard has not been done.

The Holding company has provided income tax provision for F.Y. 23-24 on the basis of estintation and
final liability would be determined later at the time of final payment of income tax. If any shortfall/
excess, the same will be then recognized subsequently.

B. 4 Accounting Standard — 29.- "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Holding Company is in litigation with
various parties on diverse matters, a number of which are pending for several years. However, against
many cases, the Holding Company has not estimated and disclosed the amount of possible financial

" implication of the dispute, as required under AS 29 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’.

B. 5 Accounting Standard — 24 - "Discontinuing Operations’:

As the Holding Company has already started djsposing off its movable assets incl
according to the closure directives, the Company cannot be treated to be continuing
disclosure as contained in accounting standard 24 ‘Discontinuing Operations’ have/fig
in preparation of the accounts of the Holding Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

TO THE. MEMBERS OF NATIONAL JUTEMANUFACTURES .CORPORATION LIMITED REPORT-ON-THE AUDIT ..

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMIENTS
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of National Jute Manufactures
Corporation Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”),which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31,2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flows
Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information(herein after referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the effects of matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in.
India, ofthe console-dated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024 of consolidated Profit, and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
A} Going Concern Assumption:

The accounts of the Holding Company and the Subsidiary have been drawn up on going concern basis
which is not appropriate under the circumstances because of the following reasons:

e TheiUnion Cabinet has approved the closure of National Jute Manufactures Corporation Limited
(NJMC) and its subsidiary Birds Jute Exports Limited (BJEL) at its meeting held on 10th October, 2018.
Disposal of all assets will be in accordance with the gundelmes of DPE dated 14.06.201. and the
proceeds from the sale of assets, after meeting the liabilities will be deposnted in Consolidated Fund

" of India. In terms of engagement of MSTC as auctioning agency, all the movable assets of five of its
mills namely viz National, Alexandra, RBHM, Kinnison, and Khardah have been disposed of along with
huilding of Khardah.

* During the year the holding company has recognized the disposal of its Movable Property, Plant and
Equipment of Khardah and Kinnison Unit and Building of Khardah. The profit of which is shown as
Profit on sale of Scrap Sale(refer note 22(B)iii)-of Consolidated Financial Statements).

« NBCC who has been appointed as Pre-Land Management Agency submitted its report but the
disposal of Land & Building for all units is yet to be taken. :

* During the year the disposal of movable property, plant, and equipment along with building which
were auctioned and sold along with inventory, the sales value over and above carrying value of such
movable Property, Plant and Equipment is shown as Profit on Sale of Scrap sale.

» The income of the holding Company for-the last several years is primarily from Interest on Fixed

Deposits. ‘

_ 1 _ '
» The auditors of subsidiary company have expressed an opinion that ‘thrial
8

uncertainty which is casting significant doubt on the ability of the subsidiary to inue as
concern. S
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C) Under/Over statement of Income/Expenses and Assets/Liabilities:

C.1 Property, Plant & Equipment & Depreciation:

a) Asdisclosed in Note 12(4) of Consolidated Financial Statement, ‘Land & Building’ includes property
at 5, Alipore Road, Kolkata, which is not in the possession of the holding Company though vested in
the holding company under the Jute Companies (Nationalization) Act, 1980. The property is under
litigation and the legal experts are having divergent views regarding the ownership right over the
property. Though the ownership is disputed, the holding company is providing liability in respect of
municipal taxes payable to Kolkata Municipal Corporation, which amounted to ‘4.45Lakhs for the
financial year 2023-24 (Previous Year: ¥4.45 Lakhs). The cumulative Liability so provided upto
31.03.2024 is ¥ 120.92 Lakhs (upt031.03.2023: ¥ 116.47 Lakhs)(refer Note 10(b) of Consolidated
Financial Statement)

b) The Title Deeds of the land of Holding Company at various location were made available for our
verification but could not be properly verified and linked" with the records of land (refer Note
No.12(7)). However according to information and explanation given to us, the land property of
three mills viz. Khardah, some portion of Kinnison and Alexandra are still continuing in the name of
the erstwhile companies. We have been further informed that representation has been made to the
Additional District Magistrate & District Land &Land Reforms Officer — North 24 Paraganas, Barasat
as well as Secretary Land and Land Reforms and Refugee Relief and Rehabilitation Department,
Government of West Bengal for updating the land records in respect of the said propertles but, the
matter is still pending as on 31st March 2024.

e) The auditors of the subsidiary company in their report have stated the title deeds of the immoveable
properties are partly held in the name of the subsidiary company in digitized form. 48.39 Acres of
land is in the name of BJEL and 4.63 Acres of land is in the name of erstwhile Company M/S
Lansdowne Jute Company Limited (consisting of plots recorded in the Khatian No. 42,43,44 & 45).
However a letter has been received from Chief Secretary, Government of West Bengal, wherein Govt of
West Bengal vide Letter No. DON0.878-CS/2022 Dated 06/06/2022 has claimed ownership of the entire
Land of BJEL.

C.2} Investments:

The Holding companyis not maintaining proper Register of its Investments. The details of investments,
as disclosed under Note No. 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, is also not matching with
the general ledger and there is a difference of 30.37 Lakh. Further, in respect Investments in Govt.
securities aggregating to Y0.74 Lakhs and Share scrips in respect of investments held in Britannia
Engineering Ltd. and J.F. Low & Co. Ltd, value ‘NIL’ could not be made available for our verification
and were informed to be not traceable. These investments are very old and it was explained to us that
the original certificates might have been provided as security to the ious  Govt.
authorities/departments. It was also noticed that investments include ¥ 0. 02 L :ﬁ?‘;c‘k'f\e\s res of
companies, the names of which have already been struck off. However, full pr ts n has baé}g
against all these investments. Furthermore, investments include shares in Chiyi ;C*o‘mpaay;
and Birla Corporation Limited against which full provision has been made tho v@eﬁdﬂ" ‘R 0.02
Lakhs have been received against these shares.
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C.3) Cash and Bank Balances:

Bank balances of Holding Company include Rs 0.90 lakhs on account of Kinnison Unit lying with UCO Bank,
Titagarh Branch, which is an inoperative account as on balance sheet date.

Bank balance of Holding Company include Rs. 5.91 lakhs on account of RBHM unit lying with Central Co-
operative Bank, Katihar district branch, for which details are not available with the management.

For the following old bank accounts of Birds Jute and Exports Ltd wherein no transactions have been made
andareinoperative, no confirmation has beenobtained fromthe banks (Refer Note No. 18 {c) of Consolidated
Financial Statements):

Bankers Name Book Balance as at 31.03.2024 (in ¥)|Book Balance as at 31.03.2023 (in )
\Vysya Bank,N.S.Road,Kolkata NIL 804.15
Syndicate Bank, Madras NIL 963.00
Syndicate Bank,Calcutta(PCL) NIL 683.00

C.4) Short Term Loans & Advances:

a) Against the aggregate amount of ¥1,319.71 Lakhs as income tax deducted at source receivable by the
holding company has made a provision of ¥408.77 Lakhs. (Refer Note No. 19(b) of consolidated
financial statements)

b) The Income-tax refunds determined for earlier years, together with interest allowed thereon, are being
adjusted by the Income tax department against the arrear demand for the assessment year 1990-91.
The outstanding demand summary of the Holding company appearing in the Intimation U/s. 143(1) for
the assessment year 2023-24 is still showing a sum of ¥176.16 Lakhs (For the A.Y. 1990-91) payable by
the Holding company. The demand for 2007-08, 2009-10 and 2023-24, amounting to ¥1.78 Lakhs was
paid by the Holding company on 28/12/23."

c) After going through the balance confirmation and the audited financial statements for the year ending
- 31.03.2024 received from Birds Jute & Exports Ltd., the subsidiary, we observed the balance lying in
various accounts with the subsidiary are not matching, the details of which are as follows:

Account Balance as per Balance as per Remarks
NIMC (R in Lakhs) Subsidiary
(Xin Lakhs)
oan Given 477.49 477.49 ifferences enumerated in the
nterest Accrued on loans granted to 4213.64 4213.64 | columns have not been reconciled
Subsidiary till close of the year.

rdvances given 632.15 631.05 '
lreditors for Goods NIL 94.91
‘reditors for Rent NIL 0.15
rade Receivables A/c Goods NIL 4 258.21
rade Receivables A/c Expenses NIL 7.40
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The net difference between holding Company and subsidiary Company amounted to * 169.44 Lakhs, which
has been shown in the Consolidated Balance sheet as “Unreconciled between Holding & Subsidiary subject to
reconciliation.”

C.5 Other Current Assets:

Since party wise details and relevant documents could not be made available to us in respect of holding
company’s Security Deposits aggregating to ¥ 54.70 Lakhs, out of which T 11.47 Lakhs considered doubtful
and provided for, it could not be determined how the Holding company is assured of the recovery of
balance amount of ¥43.23 Lakhs which also should have been provided under the current situation. (Refer
Note 20(b) of Consolidated Financial Statement)

C.6 Long Term Borrowings:

C.7

c.8

a) The holding company has taken loans of ¥ 281.48 Lakhs from Government of West Bengal in earlier
years. The Loan agreement or any other document showing the terms and conditions of such loan could
not be made available to us for our verification. The Holding company has defaulted in repayment of
loan taken from Government of West Bengal T 1932.93 lakhs (principal and interest thereon) as on
31.03.2024.(Refer Note No.'5 of Consolidated Financial Statements)

b) The subsidiary company has taken Non-Plan Loan from Government of India of %2,159.36 (32,159.36
Lakhs in 2022-23) and has defaulted in repayment of this loan and the accumulated balance of Principal
including interest unpaid as per the books of account of the company is ¥ 10,015.91 Lakhs as on 31st
March, 2024 (as on 31st March, 2023 ¥ 9,626.70 Lakhs). -

¢) No balance confirmation have been obtained by the holding and subsidiary company from the Central
Government for the outstanding balance of interest free loan as on 31.03.2024 amounting to ¥
23,730.77 Lakhs also defaulted (Refer Note No. 5 of Consolidated Financial Statements)

Trade Payables:

Trade Payables of holding company aggregating to 32,036.76 Lakhs (as at 31.03.2023 T 2104.85 Lakhs)
include old outstanding balances carried over for more than three years aggregating to¥ 1,983.50 Lakhs as
per age-wise analysis of trade payables prepared by the Company. Trade Payable MSME WAS 112.58
LAKHS as on 31-3-24. Details of such was not made avalaible to us which remain outstanding for more
than three years. So, we are not able to comments on the classification and provision for interest of
delayed payment to MSME. Furthermore, in case of Kinnison Unit, the amount of Sundry Creditors for
Services and Sundry Creditors for Stores are being included in Trade Payables at net of debit balance of ¥
25.32 Lakhs lying in some of these creditor accounts. Consequently, the liability on account of Trade
Payables is understated to that extent in the balance sheet. Furthermore, the provision made by the
Holding company towards doubtful advances given is also short to that extent, which has the impact of
understatement of loss to the extent of T 25.32 Lakhs on this account.

Other Current Liabilities :

a) Statutory dues of holding company include Damages due on PF and interest thereon amounting to ¥
903.06 Lakhs, Damages on ESI and interest thereon amounting to 3,240.01 Lakhs, Professional Tax
(including interest) amounting to ¥70.18 Lakhs, and Fringe Benefit Tax amounting ¥ 8.93 Lakhs,
provision for TDS Statutory amounting to ¥ 2.74 Lakhs which are brought forward/s'/ cesdong Back for
which no relevant information is provided by the company so, due to absence of’yg}é\}mﬂ on,
it could not be ascertained how much of these liabilities are ultimately payable p&-\Whather1hd
have been adequately provided. Q)\”é A@untants) [

)
AN <

, >
B ..
N
WA
J TS 10
- =




W'?{é;

Salarpuria & Partners

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
7, C. R. AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072

INDIA Phone : 2237 5400 / 5401, 4014 5400-5410

Website : www.salarpuriajajodia.com
E-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com
office@salarpuriajajodia.com
Branch at New Delhi

b) In the absence of party-wise details and other necessary information with the holding company in
respect of undisbursed claim of Commissioner of Payment: ¥40.29 Lakhs; Performance Guarantee: ¥
57.47 Lakhs, Advance from Parties: ¥103.55 Lakhs, interest on ISDS Fund of $19.02 Lakhs and old
outstanding balances included in Security Deposits/EMD Received amount of which could not be
ascertained for want of details. It is not possible for us to ascertain how much of these liabilities are
ultimately payable or whether the same have been ultimately provided for. Most of the balance are
outstanding from a long period of time.

c) Liabilities for Employee benefits of the holding company of ¥337.83 Lakhs include old outstanding
liability aggregating to ¥320.60 Lakhs on account of VRS payable, Gratuity Payable and Arrear Salary
Payable. The Company is maintaining the old balances as liability towards staff related payments.
According to the information given to us, the total financial contingent liability in Labour matters, so far
the management could ascertain in a number of cases comes to 36,987.99 Lakhs.(Refer Note 30(11) of
Consolidated Financial Statement)

d) Unpaid Other Rates & Taxes of the holding company3 113.78 Lakhs, are being carried forward for long.
In the absence of relevant information, it could not be ascertained how much of these liabilities are
ultimately payable or whether the same have heen adequately provided (Refer Note No. 10 (viii) of
Consolidated Financial Statements)

e) The subsidiary company has provided liability towards arrears of dividend on its cumulative preference
shares despite incurring losses, whereas, dividend is payable out of profits only. Further, the subsidiary
company has treated such dividends as expenditure whereas dividends are not expense but
appropriation of profit (Refer Note No. 27 of Consolidated Financial Statements).

In view of the aforesaid observation, we are unable to determine the impact of these matter on the
statement of affair of the Group and the corresponding impact on the statement of profit and loss.

C.9 Ageing Schedules:

Break-up and ageing Schedules of Trade Payables and Trade Receivables have been given in respect of
Trade Payables and Trade Receivables of Holding Company along with Trade Receivable of subsidiary
company only. We have been informed that the Trade Payables of the Subsidiary could not be included in
these schedules as the required information could not be obtained from the subsidiary Company.

fn view of the aforesaid observations, we are unable to determine the impact of these matters on the
statement of affairs of the group and the corresponding impact on the Consolidated Statement of Profit &
Loss.

.

C.10 Others:

The auditors of subsidiary company have opined that in all material respects, the subsidiary Company does
not have an adequate internal control system over financial reporting and such internal controls over
financial reporting were not operating effectively as at 31* March, 2024.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profﬁessional judgment, were of most sigy
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addrdéégd i
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and informing our opini

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Group as it is an
unlisted company. :

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. :

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatemeni of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard at present.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act,2013 (the Act) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cashflows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India , including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an:audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from érror, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related event or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying trai,sactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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OTHER MATTERS

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2023, included in these Consolidated
Financial Statements have been audited by R.K. Patodia & Co., Chartered Accountants, the predecessor auditor
who expressed a modified opinion vide their report dated on December 1, 2023.

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary, whose financial
statements have been considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and
other financial information have been audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates other amounts
and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of subsection {3) of Section 143 of
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

Our op‘inion is not modified in respect of matters stated in Other Matter Paragraph.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO 2020), issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section{11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary, as noted in
the ‘othermatter’ paragraphand except for the possible effects of the matter described in “Basis for qualified
opinion” paragraph above, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opiniun paragraph,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as appears
from our examination of the books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash
FlowStatementdealtwith by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion parz . caph, in our
opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the accounting standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e} The matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Companies comprised in the group.
9
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We have been informed that the provisions of section 164(2) of the Act in respect of disqualification of
directors are not applicable to the holding Company, being a Government Company in terms of
notification No.G.S.R.463(E) dated 5th June,2015 and as reported by auditors of the subsidiary, on the
basis of written representation received from the directors and take non record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors of the subsidiary is disqualified as on 31stMarch, 2024, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B.

Since the companies comprised in the group are not paying any managerial remuneration to the
directors, the provision of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules,2014,in our opinion and to the best of information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. In respect of Holding Company, the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements (Refer Note 30(11) of Consolidated Financial Statements).
In respect of Subsidiary Company, the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements, as per the report of the other Auditor, are disclosed in Annexure D.

ii.The Holding Company and its subsidiary Company did not have any such long-term contracts
including derivatives contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company incorporated in India.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have represented
to us and the other auditors of Consolidated financial statements of subsidiary Company that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall , whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company{“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

10
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(b) The respective Managements of Holding Company and its subsidiary company have represented
to us and the other auditors of Consolidated financial statements of subsidiary Company that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other source kind of funds) by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company to
orin any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause(i)and(ii)ofRule11{e), as provided under(a)and(b)above, contain
any material misstatement.

v. As the holding Company and its subsidiary have not declared or paid any dividend during the vyear, the
provisions contained in section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to it.

3. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143 (5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books
andrecordsofthe Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, in the “Annexure-C” on the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor Generz! of India.

4. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Group
with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

As per the above mentioned rule the Group has to maintain books of accounts in a software which has the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) but the same is not complied by the Group during the financial year

2023-24.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS

Chartered Accountants /g @
Firm Reg. No. ICAI 302113F / (\22,
Nihar Ranjan Nayak {5 porered
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Chartered Accountant
Membersh
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Annexure-A to Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Inde.pendent Auditors’ Report to the members of National Jute Manufactures
CorporationLimited (the Company)on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the CARO 2020,we report that the auditors of the following companies have
given qualification or adverse remarks in their CARO report on the standalone financial statements of the
respective companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company:

Sl.  |Name of the CiN Relationship with Date of the {Paragraph no in
No |[Company Holding Company respective | the respective
auditor’s CARO Report
report
1. National Jute U17232WB1980G01032768 |Holding Company 23.09.2022 | (i)(a)(A), (i)(b),
Manufactures (k2 (i)(a),
Corporation Limited {iii)(b), (iii}{c)
(iii)(d), (ii)(f),
(vii)(a), {vii)
(b),(ix)(a),(ix)(c),
and (xix)
2. Birds Jute and U17232WB1904G0I001579 [Subsidiary Company | 12.08.2024 {(i) c),(vii) (a), (vii)
Exports Limited . - |(b), (xvii)and (xix)

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. ICAl 302113E

Nihar Ranjan Nayak

N'R Na-p
Chartered Accountant
Membership No.-570G76

Partner

UDIN: 240576 76 B DHLIA5L

Place: poirptA
Date: 63.09.2024
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ANNEXURE - B
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE(i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National Jute Manufactures Corporation
Limited (“the Company”) as on 31st March,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company. is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparatic:t of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and Subsidiary Company based on our Audit .We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed underSection143(10)
of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards
and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. ’

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our
audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

13
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i)pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;(ii)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company; and (i) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Repaorting

Because oftheinherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the Company as well as the
subsidiary have not established its internal financial control over financial reporting on criteria based on or
considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Control over Financial Reporting issued by ICAl ,e.g. control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information system and communication and monitoring. The Board’s report of Holding Company also does not
include any risk management policy for the company including identification therein of elements of risk.

In view of above observations, Internal Financial Controls in the Holding Company as on 31.03.2024 is
inadequate based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria as stated in Guidance Note
on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI

We have considered the qualified opinion reported above in determining the nature, timing and extend of
audit tests applied in our opinion on the financial statement of the company.

As opined by the auditors of the subsidiary company, the subsidiary Company in all material respects, does not
have an adequate internal financial controls over the financial reporting and as such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were not operating effectively as at 31st March,2024,based on the internal-control over
financial reporting criteria established by the subsidiary Company considering the essential components of
internal controls as stated in Guidance Note on Aucm of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAL ’
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Other Matters

Our report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company, in so far it relates to separate financial statements of the subsidiary, which is a Company
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary incorporated in
India.

We have considered the qualified opinion reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
tests applied in our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the company.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. ICAI 302113F

Nihar Ranjan Nayax

N RO
Chartered Accountant
Membership No.-57076
Partner

UDIN: 24057076 BkGDHL 9562
Place: woiLkATA
Date: p3,09.2024
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Annexure- C

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 3 under “Other legal and regulatory requirements “)

1. Inresponse to the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of
the Act, we report that:

i) The holding company does not have an ERP Accounting System or fully integrated IT system among its
units and corporate office. The accounts of each unit and corporate office are maintained on accounting
software. Consolidation of accounts of the corporate office and the various divisions are done through a
separate data entry mode. The present system adopted by the company leaves a scope of absence of data
integrity and increases audit risk.

As reported by the auditors of subsidiary company, the subsidiary company is maintaining its accounts
through Tally software but the process of accounting is kind of Hybrid system involve manual and
computerized process. The auditors of subsidiary have not found any issue on the integrity of the accounts
with any financial implication.

ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Holding Company
examined by us, there have been no cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the holding company due to company’s inability to repay the loan.

The auditors of the subsidiary company have reported that the direction related to cases of waiver/ write
off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the subsidiary company due to company’s inability to
repay the loan is not applicable to the subsidiary company.

iii) a) The Holding Company is carrying Interest Free loan, sanctioned by the Government of India as addition
AL budgetary support for restructuring/revival of the Company as approved by Cabinet Committee of
Economic Affairs (CCEA) and BIFR, as Long-Term Borrowings.

b) The Holding Company has obtained a Loan of ¥ 281.48 Lakhs from Government of West Bengal in
earlier years, repayment of Loan and Interest on which have been defaulted in since 31st March 1994.
The accumulated balance of Loan and Unpaid Interest is ¥1,932.93 Lakhs as on 31.03.2024. In absence
of loan documents, terms & conditions, adequacy of the interest provision made cannot be
commented upon.

o
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¢) As disclosed in Note 3 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company had received grants
from Bihar Government and IJIRA in 1988-89 and subsidy from West Bengal Industrial Development
Corporation in 1982-83. The detailed papers of such grant/subsidy as well as the assets acquired out
of such grant were not made available to us. As per the discussion with the management we were
made aware that the grant was given for the daily expense of the unit. Each year an amount of Rs.0.10
lakhs is transferred from the grant and is shown as income as on 31/03/24 after transferring the
amount of ¥ 0.10 lakhs for this F.Y. an amount of 0.08 lakhs is left in it.

d) The auditors of the subsidiary company have not pointed out any deviation in respect of Grant
received by the Subsidiary in earlier years for the implementation scheme of R & D Programme and
product Diversification from Government of india Jute Special Development Fund.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. ICAI 302113F

Nibar Ranjan Nayak

N R e
Chartered Accountant
Membership No.-57076

Partner

UDIN: 240567076 Bk DH L1952

Place: izpLKATA
Date: pa,09.202Y4
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Befor the West Benéal
Land Reforms and Tenancy Tribunal,
Salt Lake O. A. No. 2210 of 2022
Brids Jute & Exports Limited
Vs-
Rototron Containers Pvt. Ltd. & Ors.

Against unauthoried encroachment and construction by Rototron Containers Pvt. Ltd. & Ors.
In BJEL Land Daag No. 104, BJEL's advocate appeared on 02.09.2022 after hearing the counsel
for the parties the Ld. Tribunal was fixed the matter on 12th October, 2023

The Judgment was delivered on 29th February, 2024, Wherein the Tribunal dismissed the
application M.A. No. 1269 of 2023 after contest. The matter was fixed on 15th March, 2024
for hearing of the Original Application upon conbsidering the fact that a WPLRT has been
preferred challending the order dated 29th February, 2024 and as such the matter has been
fixed on 02.07.2024 for hearing of the Original Application. Liberty has also been granted to
mention.

In the Court of the Secend

Civil Judge (Sr. Division) at
Barasat Title Suit No. 42 of
2013 \ New
No. Title Suit No. 8191

of 2014 Brids

Jute & Exports Limited - Vs-

Ratotron Containers Pvt. Ltd.

The present suit has been filed by BJEL for decrees for declaration and injunctions in respect
of Dag No.104, including decree for recovery of possession of the Land.

The matter was fixed for hearing of injunction Application before the LD. 2nd Civil Judge (Sr.
Division) at Barasat on 24.01.2023 our counsel appeared on the same date. The Ld. Advocate
for the defendant has filed an application under Section 151 of the Code of Civil Procedure
inter-alia praying for expedition—s disposal of the injection application as filed by BJEL and
after hearing the parties the Ld. Court was pleased to fix the matter on 21.03.2023 for hearing
the injunction appllcatlon with a liberty to BJEL to file the objection to the said application in
the mean time.

The above suit before the Ld. 2nd Civil Judge Senior Divisioin at Barasat on 08.05.2023 for
hearing of the applicatioin under section 151 of Civil Procedure Code 1908, after hearing the
Ld. Court was pleased to adjourn the matter till 20th July, 2023.

Defendant No. 1 filed a put-up npetitionb in the suit on February 9, 2024, seeking permission
to file pleadings/ applications. Copies of these documents were served to us on February 6,
2024,

In addition, we filed and moved an application on behalf of the BJEL for the extension of the
injunction order issued by the Hon'ble High Court at Calcutta in FMAT 583 of 2013; FMA 1455
of 2013, Following arguments from learned advocates representing both parties, the learned
advocates representing both parties, the Learned Court has scheduled the hearing for the said
applications/pleadings on 16.07.2024. '

In the Court of the 3rd
Civil Judge (Jr. Division),
Bhavan
No. 185 of 2004
Exports Limited
Singh

Mayuk
Title Suit
Birds Jute &
-vs- Sovarath

The present Suit has been filed by Bird Jute for decree for injunctions against defendants
{heirs of Late Kashi Nath @ Kashi Prasad Singh) in respect of Dag No.104.

An ad-intgerim order of status qul was passed by the Learned Court on 14th Jjuly, 2004 and
from time to time the interim order has been extended and it is still subsisting. Due to non-
appearance of the defendants summons of the suit have been to the defendants on number
of occasions. Thereafteer, an applicatioin has been filed on behalf of BIEL for hearing the suit
exparte which was allowed by the Learned Court and the matter is fixed for exparte hearing.
Examination in Chief has been completed. Fixed for hearing on the next date.

On the 16.09.2022 Company was served with a copy of application under Order 12 Rule 10
read with order 1 Rule 10(2) read with Sec 151 of the Code of Civil procedure for intervention
to the matter. Mr. Aritra Basu Advocate (Fox & Manda) will draw the written objection in the
above matter, and placved before the court on 09.01.2023.

The application for Addition of Party Filed by the Defendaant No.5 was heard by the Ld. Civil
Judge (Jr. Division) Salt Lake on n 9th January, 2003 Counsel on our behalf filed the written
objection against the application for Addition of Party filed by Rototron Containers (P) ttd.
after hearing The Ld. Tribunal to fix the matter on 18th April, 2023 for further hearing.
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The above matter was fixed for hearing the application under order 12 rule 10 rfead with
order 1 Rule 10{2) and with section 151 of the code of civil procedure before Ld. Civil Judge
(Ir. Division) after hearing the Ld. Court was pleased to fix the matter on 18.08.2023 for
further hearing.

The above matter was fixed for hearing the application under order 12 rule 10 rfead with
order 1 Rule 10(2) and with section 151 of the code of civil procedure before Ld. Civil Judge
(Jr, Division) after hearing the Ld. Court was pleased to fix the matter on 18.08.2023 for
further hearing.

The suit was initially scheduled for hearing of the application under Order Xli Rule 10, read
with Order | Rule 10(2) and Section 151 of the Code of Civil Procedure, hefore the Learned
Civil Judge {Jr. Division), Salt Lake, on 22nd January, 2024. However, due to a-change in the
Learned Judge, the court deemed it necessary to rehear the matter a fresh. Consequently, this
suit has been rescheduled for further consideration 25.06.2024.

4 Before the 2nd Civil Judge (Sr. Div),
Barasat T.S. No. 85 of 2012 New No, Title
Suit 2651 of 2014 Rototron Containers
{P) Ltd. -vs- Birds Jute & Export's Limited

The Plaintiff had filed the suit for obtaining injunctioin against the defendant restraining them
from interfering, obstructing the plaintimm in the development of the said premises in
question.

Written Statement has been filed on behalf of BJEL. The plaintiff has filed a supplementarty
affidavit to which written objection has been filed on behaif of Birde Jute.

Advocate appeared on BIEL, behalf, after hearing the parties the court was pleased to fix
matter on 23rd Decembelj, 2022 for hearing.

The application under order VI rule 17 of CPC filed by the Plaintiff for amendment of the
plaint, when advocate appeared o behalf of BJEL and after hearing the Court was pleased to
fix the matter on 13.03.2023 for hearing.

A written objection on behalf of BJEL is to be filed in the meantime.

The above suit was fixded before the Ld. 2nd Civil Judge (Sr. Division) Barasat on 23.12.2022
for hearing. The application under Order VI Rule 17 of CPC filed by the Plaintiff for
amendment of the plaint. Our Counsel appeared on our behalf and after hearing the court
was pleased to fix the matter on 30.30.2023 for hearing . Written Objection is to filed on
behalf of BJEL in the meantime.

Date is not fix for Hearing. There are four civil suits i.e. TS 185 of 2004, TS 85 of 2012, TS 97 of
2012 and TS 42 of 2013. itr is advised by the legal firm to file an application for those 4 cases
to file an application before thye Hon'ble High Court at Calcutta for consolidation and
or/composite( hearing of the said suits. The step will also be in the interest of effective
adjudication of the issues involved in the suit together and to avoid conflict adjudication of
the issues involved in the suit together and to avolid confliet the decisions by the courts and
multiplicity of proceedings. The suit was fixed before Ld. 2nd Civil Judge (Sr. Division), Barasat
on 26th lune, 2023 for hearing of the application under Order VI Rule 17 of CPC filed by the
Plaintiff or amendment of the Plaint. Presiding Officer was transferred and Ld. Judge-in-
Charge was preoccupied with his own determination, the said application could not be heard.
Next date has been fixed on 6th December, 2023 for hearing of the said application.

The suit was scheduled before the Learned 2nd Civil Judge (Sr. Division) Barasat, on 6th
December, 2023, for the hearing of the application under Order VI Rule 17 of the Code of Civil
Procedure (CPC) filed by the Plaintiff for amendment of the Plaint. During the hearing, when
we appeared, we opposed the application. The said application was partially heared, and the
Learned Court was pleased to adjourn the suit for further hearing on the said application, date
not yet fixed. '
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5 Before the Learned 2nd . The suit has been filed for permanent injuction against South Dum Dum Municipality for
Civil Judge encroachment of the land of BIEL. Injunction has been granted which is till 29th April, 2022.
{Senior Division) at Barasat | The matter is fixed for appearance of the defendants on the next date.
.T'S' No.736 of 2021 Injunction has been granted which is till 07-12-2022. The matter is fixed for appearance of the
Birds Jute & ExportilLtd. “|defendants on the next date.
S-

South Dum Dum Municipality & Ors. injunction has been extended till 31-01-2023. The matter is fixed for the next date 31.01.2023
i for filing application for further extension of the interim order and for service return of writ of
summons upon the defendants.

This above matter was fixed before the Ld. 2nd Civbil Judge (Sr. Division) at Barasat on
01.04.2023 and filed an application for extension of Interim Order dated 7th October, 2021
after hearing the court was pleased to extend the interim ordeer till 17th June, 2023 for filing
application for futher extension of the Interim Order and for servbice return of writ of
summons upon he defendants.

This suit was scheduled, before the Learned 2nd Civbil Judge (Sr. Division) at Barasat on 1st
December, 2023, during which we appeared and filed an application for the extension of the
interim order dated 7th October, 2021, after serving due notice to the Defendants. After,
hearing the arguments, the Learned Court Observed that summonses were received by Defen
dant Nos. 1 and 3, but Defendant No.2 had not yet been served. Consequently, the Learned
Court Issued an ex-parte Order against Defendant Nos. 1 and 3 and directed us to file an
Affidavit of service for Defendant No. 2 on the next date, i.e., 5th April, 2024. Additionally, the
intgerim Order was extended until 23.07.2024.

6 {Before the 5th, Court, Fast Track & Addl.jWe filed an applicatioin on behalf of BJEL on 31.01.2024 against the Injunction Petition filed

District Judge at Barasat by Anokhi on 11.01.2024. Additionally, we have prepared and sent a draft application for in
Title Appeal No. 29 of 1996 And |vestigation into the misplaced Tin Box on 27.02.2024, along with a compilation documents on
CO No0.1732 of 2023 Anokhi 05.03.2024, through a Put-Up Petition. The next hearing is scheduled.for 21.08.2024.
Manufacturing Products Pt Ltd.
| -Vs- ’ Birds

Jute & Exports Limited

7 | Before the Ld. Certificate ~ Officer under |BJEL is advised to proceed with the certificate case under Section 14 of the said Act pending
the Bengal Public Demands Recovery Act, {before the District Magistrate, North 24-Parganas, for the recovery.of a sum of ¥ 4,47,20,439/
1913 Certificate Case No.1/ Misc of 2016-|on account of Land Revenue for the period 2008 ro 2015, under the head of Unpaid
17 Birds |Rent/Damages/interest. Matter is pending before Certificate Officer Barasat.
Jute & Exports Limited -vs- T.K.
Warehousing Private Limited

8 W. P. No. 1297w/2012 The Writ petition has been filed against encroachment of the land of BJEL and for illegal
Birds Jute & Exports Limited -vs- |construction of reservoir on the land of BJEL. The matter is not appearing in the list of the
South Dum Dum Municipality Learned Judge taking determination.

Ld. Advocate has advised to file a supplementary Affidavit in the matter. Send the all
particulars and the photograph evidencing the details of construction of the Reservoir, Play
Ground and Party Office on the land of BJEL for drafted the supplementary affidavit.

During the hearing hearing of the Writ Petition, WPA No0.21128 of 2021, before Hon'ble
Justice Amrita Sinha, Mr, Supratim Dhar, Counsel informed the Court about the on going
status of the writ6 petition and requested a fixed date for its hearing. Mr. Dhar advised filing a
Supplementary Affidavit considering the subsequent events.

In light of the above, we kindiy request you to provide us with the particulars and
photographs that demonstrate the construction details of the Reservoir, Playground, and
Party Office on BJEL's land, as required in our letter dated 16th May, 2023
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In the High Court at Calcutta WPA
No0.21128 of 2021
Birds Jute & Exports Limited
Svs-
South Dum Dum Municipality and Ors.

Writ petition against encroachment by South Dum Dum Municipality in the land of BJEL.

The matter is appearing at item No.51 opf the daily cause list dated 16.03.2023 before
Hon'ble justice Amirta Sinha. Matter not yet taken up.

After hearing Counsel for the parties and upon consideration of the said Declaration-cum-
NOC, the court was pleased to pass the following order:

There are overwhelming evidences in support of the ownership of said land at the hand of|
petitioner. Prior to making such declaration, it was the duty of the Chairman of the
Municipality to verify all records.

It appears that litigation in respect of the selfsame plot of land is continuing from 2012
onwards and the Municipality ought not to have made such incorrect declaration without
consulting the records.

The Petitioner is litigating for the property for a considerable period of time and during the
period the petitioner was moving around the corridors of this Court, the Municipality handed
over the plot of land to KMDA for constructioin of the Elevated Services Reservoir.

It has been submitted that at present water is being distributed to the inhabitants of the
locality from the said reservoir. :

At this stage, it will not be proper to direct the Municipality to demolish the said reservoir.
The only alternative remedy lift right now is to pay adequate compensation to the petitioner
on acquisition of the land is question in accordance with law.

On the request of the learned advocate representing the Municipality, the matter adjourned
till May 16, 2023.

The Municipality is directed to ascertain the area of land over which the construction has been
made and make proper measurement of the same. At the time of measurement, notice shall
be given to the petitioner and the concerned BL & LRO and Amin.

The Petitioner shall also be permitted to engage Amin who may remain present at the time of
measurement of land.

A report by way of affidavit be placed before this Court disclosing the manner in whlch the
Municipality intends to solve the problem that has cropped up.

List of May 16, 2023 marked "For Orders".

On 16th May Ld. Counsel on behalf of the municipality prayed for extension time to file the
affidavit in compliance to the earlier dated 18.04.2023. After hearing the counsel for the
parties, the Hon'ble Court was pleased to allow such extension peremptorily and fixed the
matter on 21st June, 2023 for further consideration.

On 21.06.2023 the direction passed by the Court regarding inspection has not be comphed till
date. !

It appears that the Municipality on two earlier occasions failed to comply the direction passed
by the court. The Municipality is directed to comply the courts direction immediately.
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Let inspection be conducted by June 28, 2023 upon notice to the parties to the parties as
mentioned in the order dated April 18, 2023 and May 16, 2023
A report shall be placed before this court on the adjourned date.

List on June 30, 2023 marked "For Orders".

The matter was heard before Hon'ble Justic Amrita Sinha on the 30th instant our Advocate|-
appeared.

Counsel on South Dum Dum Municipality filed a Report in the form on an Affidavit. After
hearing Councel for the parties the Hon'ble Court was pleased to grant leave to the Petitioner|
to consider the affidavit and file their exception if necessary, 10th July 2023. Next date has
been fixed on 17th July, 2023. Learned Advocate for KMD has filed a communication dated
11.04.2023. Our Advacate send one copy each of the Report of South Dum Dum Municipality
and communication dated 11.04.2023 issued by Chief Engineer, WOS {Water Su; zly Wind),
KMDA. .

The Municipality has failed to adhee to the Report filed by them in terms of Paragraph 9 of
the report. The Municipality has willfully violated the orders dated 18th April, 2023, 30th
June, 2023, and 17th July, 2023 and as such we are in the process of filing contempt
application in due course.

10 Misc Appeal 29/17 MIS All the five Misc Appeals have been filed against Birds Jute and Exports challenging the order
J. L. Chanddra Family Trust of eviction passed by the Ld.
Misc Appeal 30/17
MIS Benoy Kr. Chandra Family
Trust,
Misc Appeal 31/17 MIS

A. K. Chandra Family Trust Misc. Appeal [All the above noted 5 {five) Misc. Appeals has been filed against Birds Jute & Exports Ld.
33/17 MIS Bijoy Kr. Chandra Family Trust Challenging the order of eviction passed by the Ld. Estate Officer and the last date of the
« cases were fixed on 15.12.2022 for LCR. As the LCR has not been received by the Ld. Court so
) the next date has been fix on 24.03.2023 for LCR.
All the above noted 5 (five) Misc. Appeals has been filed against Birds Jute & E')Eports Ld.
Challenging the order of eviction passed by the Ld. Estate Officer and the last date of the
cases were fixed on 15.12.2022 for LCR. As the LCR has not been received by the Ld. Court so
the next date has been fix on 24.03.2023 for LCR.
Next date for further hearing on 11.10.2023.

Estate Officer and the last date of the said cases were fixed on 28.07.2022 for Hearing
appeal. As the LCR has not yet been received by the Ld. Court. So the next date has been fixed
on 15,12.2022 for LCR.

11 |CAN No. 1 of 2023 CAN|[The matter was heard by Hon'ble Justice Soumen Sen and Hon'ble Justice Uday Kumar on
No. 2 of 2024 CAN 117.05 13.02.2024. Following arguments from Counsel for the parties, the Hon'ble Court
No. 3 of 2024 CAN |allowed CAN 03 of 2024 and directed substituted service of the contemp applicatioin by
No. 1 of 2023 CPAN No. | publishing notices in "The Time of India", "Bartaman,” and Dainik Vishyamitra within three
1408 of 2023 FMA 1455 jweeks. Further more, the Court directed the excchange of affidavits in CAN 02 of 2024 within
of 2013 Birds Jute & |four weeks. The matter is scheduled to appear next on 21.06.2024.
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